
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 24 July 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 10 July 2019 

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract Award - Salford Carers Service 

(Pages 5 - 26)

5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract Award - Replacement of Life Buoys with Throwlines at 
Salford Quays 

(Pages 27 - 32)

5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - Approved Flexible 
Procurement System to Supply Alternative Provision to Salford Pupils 

(Pages 33 - 62)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

Public Document Pack



10:00a.m. on Wednesday 7 August 2019 in the Boardroom, Salford 
City Council, Town Hall, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

10 July 2019

Meeting commenced: 10:02 a.m.
Meeting ended: 10:28 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillors Hinds (in the chair) and Merry

IN ATTENDANCE: Opu Anwar Engineer - Infrastructure
Peter Cowling Business Manager
Ben Dolan Strategic Director Place
Paul Gill Senior Development Manager
Stephen Hands Associate - Infrastructure
Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Shoaib Mohammad Client Highways Engineer
Paul Nugent Head of Strategic Procurement
Kurt Partington Head of Development
Chris Smith Group Engineer - Infrastructure
Julie Wood Post Room Supervisor
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Boshell and the City 
Mayor Paul Dennett.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2019 were approved as a correct record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

5. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – CONTRACT EXTENSION – POSTAL SERVICES

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Service Reform seeking 
approval to extend the contract for postal services. 

The single service provider arrangement with a group of authorities from the GM, 
Yorkshire and Humberside regions had allowed Salford City Council to achieve the 
maximum benefit in volume related discounts (VRD) in 2018 that it would not have 
been able to achieve outside of the collaborative arrangement. Authorities were 
already planning ahead but an extension for a further 12 months would ensure that 
the contract start dates for 2020 onwards would be aligned across the collaborating 
authorities.

It was noted that actual spend in 2018/19 was £22k over budget and that, as the 
postage budget for 2019/20 had been reduced in view of increasing digitalisation, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

there would be an estimated overspend of approximately £31k if volumes remained 
static. It was confirmed that approximately 99% of items were posted second class.

Individual service areas were re-charged for postage so it was possible to produce a 
breakdown of usage which the Strategic Director Place considered would be helpful 
in identifying where there was genuine demand and where there might be 
opportunities to communicate differently.

RESOLVED, THAT: a 12 months’ extension to the contract with Whistl UK Limited for 
the provision of postal services, at an estimated per annum average of £350,000, be 
approved.

6. TRAFFORD ROAD CORRIDOR PROJECT – PROPOSALS FOR THE DETAILED 
DESIGN AND DELIVERY, INCLUDING THE PROCUREMENT ROUTE

Consideration was given to a report of Strategic Director Place outlining proposals for 
the detailed design and delivery of the project which was intended to improve 
infrastructure to improve capacity for vehicles, reduce congestion, improve 
pedestrian and cycle connectivity, support continued growth and deliver better 
neighbourhood connections.

It was explained that the proposed procurement route was the Manchester City 
Council Highways and Infrastructure Construction Works Framework Agreement, 
with the main works contract being procured under Lot 4 (works value greater than 
£5,000,001) and the enabling works under Lot 1.

RESOLVED: THAT, 

(1) The progress to date be noted and the proposals for the detailed design and 
delivery of the project, including the procurement route as proposed in the report, 
be noted;

(2) Authority be delegated to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the 
S151 Officer to submit the Full Business Case (FBC) to the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA) for review, and

(3) Authority be delegated to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the 
S151 Officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between 
Salford City Council, Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.

7. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – CONTRACT EXTENSION - SWINTON 
TRANSFORMATION MASTERPLAN 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval 
to extend the contract with Local Partnerships for the provision of capacity support 
within the regeneration team particularly in relation to town centres.

It was acknowledged that there were different views among members about the 
redevelopment of Swinton, including the town hall itself, and that whatever 
regeneration took place had to be affordable.

RESOLVED, THAT: a six months’ extension to the contract with Local Partnerships 
be approved, at a maximum cost of £92,000, to enable the completion of a Business 
Case for Swinton Town Centre. 

Page 2



Page | 3 

8. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – CONTRACT AWARD – JUNCTION 13 HIGHWAY 
IMPROVEMENT WORKS

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval 
to award a contract to deliver highway improvement works at junction 13 of the M60 
ahead of the opening of the Royal Horticultural Society (RHS) Garden Bridgewater in 
summer 2020. 

The works were intended to provide capacity improvements to relieve existing 
congestion, to accommodate the anticipated visitor numbers to the RHS and to 
facilitate the flow of better traffic on the Salford highway network in the short-to-
medium term. It was confirmed that the works would be undertaken via night-time 
working.

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve:
(1) the award of a six months’ contract to Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd for the 

delivery of the junction 13 highway improvement works, with a total value of 
£1,038,488.93, and

(2) a quantified risk allowance post of £195,493 being held by the city council.

9. SALFORD BOLTON NETWORK IMPROVEMENTS (SBNI) – DELIVERY PACKAGE 
4 (DP4)

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval 
to award a contract to undertake the SBNI Salford Delivery Package 4 works and to 
authorise expenditure for the associated utility diversion works.

The works included improvements to pedestrian/cycling facilities and public realm for 
Pendleton Town Centre, along with the installation of a number of raised bus stops 
within these improvements around the Bus Terminal along Hankinson Way and 
Rossall Way. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve:

(1) the award of a 52 weeks’ contract to Eurovia Infrastructure Limited for the 
delivery of the Salford Bolton Network Improvements (SBNI) Delivery Package 4 
(DP4), at a cost of £2,748,253.38;

(2) the creation of a purchase order to the value of £75,089.48 to British Telecom to 
enable payments to carry out utility diversion works, and

(3) the creation of a purchase order to the value of £34,858.40 to Electricity North 
West Diversion to enable payments to carry out diversion works.

10. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL STANDING 
ORDERS -  DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION WORKS FOR REMEDIAL WORKS ON 
CHAPEL STREET

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking an 
exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a contract to be awarded for 
Design and Construction works for remedial works on Chapel Street. 

The design and construction works would identify a solution to defects which were 
believed to have started appearing in the carriageway as a result of a change of 

Page 3



Page | 4 

bedding material for granite blocks partway through the original works carried out in 
2011/12.

The board acknowledged that the regeneration of the Chapel Street area, linking the 
University of Salford to a new Corporate Centre around Salford Central Station, had 
been very successful in creating a new high quality environment for investing, living, 
working and visiting.

RESOLVED, THAT:
(1) an exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance with 

paragraph 3.1 for reasons of value for money and the need for the works is so 
urgent that the time needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the 
council’s interests, and

(2) a 8 months’ contract be awarded to A E Yates for Design and Construction works 
for remedial works on Chapel Street, at a cost of £490,000.

Page 4



Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director People 

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

24 July 2019

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for Salford Carers Service 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board  

(1) Approve an exception to Contractual Standing Orders in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 as follows:

 Where the council can demonstrate that an integrated or strategic 
approach to procurement is being implemented and there is a requirement 
to align services or contracts to co-terminus end dates.

(2) Approve the award of the Contract for Salford Carers Service as detailed in the 
table below:

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Salford Carers Service

Name of Successful Contractor The Gaddum Centre
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Charity – 507162   Company – 1348975

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £377,908 Per Annum (estimated average)

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



Contract Duration 6 months
Contract Start Date 01/04/2020
Contract End Date 30/09/2020

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Choose an item.

Contact Officer (Name & number) Paul Walsh 01612124844

Lead Service Group People Services
The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that 
the time needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial 
to the Council’s interests
Specialist services/supplies which are available only from 
one supplier. For example, specialist niche consultants or 
suppliers where there is a sole supplier of patented or 
proprietary articles, materials or services exclusively 
provided by a statutory undertaker or other bodies
For reasons of compatibility with existing services/products – 
for example, equipment that needs parts from its own 
manufacturer
Where any of the standing orders are inconsistent with any 
legislative requirements, in which instance the provisions of 
the appropriate legislation shall prevail
Where the Council can demonstrate that an integrated or 
strategic approach to procurement is being implemented and 
there is a requirement to align services or contracts to co-
terminus end dates

x

There are value for money reasons justifying a CSO 
Exception
School Governors: in relation to the Local Management of 
Schools (LMS), where schools have adopted their own 
standing orders
The shared legal service, in respect of the appointment of 
counsel

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Strategic Director of CHSC: contracts for the provision of 
personal care services or facilities pursuant to the National 
Health Service and Community Care Act 1990

Funding Source Revenue Budget

(3) Note that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in 2 above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service is 
to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek request an exception to Contractual Standing 
Orders to approve the award of a contract for the Salford Carers Service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Page 6



Report to Procurement Board, 27th January 2016 – approval given to award the 
contract for Salford Carers Service to Gaddum Centre with a contract value of 
£734,049.65 for 2 year initial contract with the option to extend for a further 24 
months.

Carers Contract 
Award open tender - ver 2.docx

Report to Lead Member, 20th September 2017 – approval given to extend the 
contract for Salford Carers Service to Gaddum Centre with a contract value of 
£377,000 pa (Salford Support Service) and £101,691.66pa (Carer’s Transformation 
Project) until 31st March 2020.

 
LM Report - Carers 
Support Contract + Carer's Transformation Project.doc

KEY DECISION: 

Yes – if total value of contract (i.e. value over full cycle of contract including any 
potential extension period) is greater than £350,000 

DETAILS: 

The Council and its partners are currently undertaking an exercise to produce an all-
age Carers Strategy for Salford. This new Carers Strategy will reflect both the 
strategic aspirations of the Greater Manchester Carers Charter that has recently 
been adopted in Salford via the Health and Wellbeing Board and also respond to the 
local aspirations for carers living in Salford who have taken part in extensive 
engagement over recent months.

The new all-age Carers Strategy is planned to have formal sign-off in the autumn of 
2019. 

The Carers Strategy will set out Salford’s vision, objectives and actions to support 
carers to 2024. It is likely that many of the actions will relate to the services that are 
commissioned to help and support Salford carers.   This strategy will also align to the 
GM Carers Strategy. 

The current Carers Service contract will come to an end on the 31 March 2020. In 
order for commissioners to respond to any new requirements for carers services set 
out in the Carers Strategy, the current Carers Service specification will need to be 
reviewed and updated as necessary to meet these new requirements.

Commissioners have already started the process to review the Carers Service 
specification and are working with Salford carers and a range of partners across 

Page 7



health and social care in doing so. However, this review cannot be concluded until 
such time that the Carers Strategy is finalised.

Commissioners are therefore requesting an exception to award a 6 month extension 
to the existing Carers Service contract in order to ensure that the Carers Service 
specification can respond to the Carers Strategy and then provide sufficient time to 
approve a new service specification and complete a tender exercise for a new 
contract start on the 1 October 2020. It will also allow time for any business case for 
additional investment that may be need to be made in light of the priorities identified 
in the strategy to be taken through the appropriate governance.

In extending the contract for 6 months there will be no impact on the commissioning 
budget as indicated in the value of the contract extension is half that of the annual 
contract value. 

The current contract performance shows the service is performing well against the 
measures and quality standards of the contract. The latest annual performance 
report shows activity as: 

Activity Quarter 
One

Quarter 
Two

Quarter 
Three

Quarter 
Four

Total

Client session (1:1 work 
with carers)

132 701 1263 1282 2096

Email contact 121 180 240 322 863
Follow up call 46 133 50 32 261
Meetings with other 
organisations re carer

113 160 80 87 440

Phone calls made on 
behalf of carer

287 535 379 381 1100

Referrals / Signposting 9 57 222 304 592

Total 708 1766 2234 2408 7116

This includes 123 young carers. The service received 518 new adult carer referral in 
2018/19 with the largest (139) source being self-referrals. GP referrals were third 
highest reflecting the impact of the Salford Standard for Carers.

The age profile of referrals shows the highest proportion of referrals from the 46-55 
age range

Page 8



21-25 26-30 31-35 36-40 41-45 46-50 51-55 56-60 61-65 66-70 71-75 76-80 81-85 86-90+
Q1 April-June 2 1 1 1 1 6 8 5 5 5 2 1 3 1
Q2 July-Sep 1 2 11 8 7 32 11 16 9 4 14 5 1 2
Q3 Oct-Dec 3 9 3 33 49 23 18 14 10 15 10 3 1
Q4 Jan-March 3 9 13 30 45 17 13 10 6 5 7 3 1

A G E  C A R E R

The most commonly recorded need for the ‘cared for’ person is mental health with 
the service having strong operational links with Greater Manchester Mental Health.

Of the young carers supported by the service, 64 were new referrals including 27 
noted from schools. The service has delivered a number of outreach activities with 
young carers, including with The Lowry and the Wildlife Trust. The service also 
supported the GM Young Carers Awareness Event hosted by Salford University.

White British continues to be the largest ethnic group supported with carers from a 
mixed ethnicity, White Irish and Black African.

The Carers Service used an Outcome Star method to show the outcome of their 
service for carers. This results from the Outcome Star show a positive outcome 
against the measures of health, caring role, managing at home, time for yourself, 
how you feel, finances and work. 

The chart opposite shows the 
progress achieved against the 
7 measures for the 18 carers 
who were surveyed in the first 
quarter of this financial year. 
The biggest improvements 
are in the carers ability to 
undertake their caring role 
and when they were asked 
about how they feel.

Case Study Sibling Young Carers:

The young carers team have been supporting two sibling carers whilst their 
Mother (Primary carer for younger brother) is accessing the adult counselling 
service at Gaddum. The siblings have been struggling to cope with the 
deteriorating health of their little brother. We have supported them around 
preparing for bereavement as their Mother felt unable to raise the possibility of 
their brother dying with the siblings. Our workers have attended child 
bereavement counselling at Salford Royal. Following the training we have 

Page 9



added to our resources to support bereavement for children. The siblings 
have responded really well to books that were suggested and have found the 
sessions helpful and reassuring. We will continue to work with this family to 
support them through the tough times ahead.

The contract will continue to be monitored by the Council through the 6 month 
extension period.

Gaddum are a registered Living Wage employer.  The current contract ensures all 
staff are employed at the Foundation Living Wage rate, to a minimum hour rate of £9 
per hour. 

The contract also delivers Social Value through securing additional income that has 
enabled the service to employ more staff and through a number of outreach projects 
in Salford that have contributed positive to improving the environment.

Additionally, the Carers Service contract is currently delivering a Transformation 
Project called the Enhanced Carers Project. This project is funded from Greater 
Manchester Transformation Fund and this funding will end on 31 March 2020. The 
Enhanced Carers Project will be evaluated during 2019/20 and a decision will be 
made through joint commissioning about the future commissioning intension for this 
project within the main Carers Service contract. This decision will take place prior to 
the 31 Match 2020 and therefore should a decision be made to embed the Enhanced 
Carers project into the main Carers Service contract then a contract variation will be 
required. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Integrated Care, Carers Strategy 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

Not applicable 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

If the exception is not approved and the current contract is not extended then the 
impact may be a reduction in service quality to a vulnerable group of people who live 
in Salford.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

Pooled Budget arrangements 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Page 10



When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or works the 
Council must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
(PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) and Financial Regulations. 

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 
extended, and CSO’s also allow for contract extensions to be made by approval by 
Procurement Board. There is, however, always a risk that any extension, if done 
outside of the usual tender process, could be subject to challenge by an aggrieved 
provider, on the basis that it ought to have been put out to tender and advertised in 
accordance with PCR.

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from 
Procurement Board, as detailed in section 3 of Part 5 of the Constitution there is still 
a risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been 
followed. The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed 
length of the extension. In this instance, as noted in the report, the value of the 
proposed extension is relatively low and for a six month period only. However the 
Council is not commissioning a service which may be readily provided by a number 
of suppliers in the marketplace. 

It could also be argued that these proposals are merely a delay in the competitive 
process, not avoidance, whilst the Council undertakes a review to ensure that the 
Carers Service specification can respond to the Carers Strategy, and then provide 
sufficient time to approve a new service specification and undertake a fully compliant 
tender exercise for a new contract start on the 1 October 2020.

The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically, 
efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public 
procurement, and comply with its duties of social value. The extension with the 
existing provider with proven ability to meet the requirements of the service users 
would be argued to be more cost effective and efficient under the circumstances.

Further reasons for approving the extensions are set out in the body of the report, 
and the risk of any challenge to the extension proposed could be described as low.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Stephen Thynne, Strategic Finance 
Manager, Tel: 0161 778 0244 

This report requests a 6 month exception to approve an additional extension from 1st 
April 2020 to the current Salford Carers Service contract currently held by the 
Gaddum Centre. The value of the 6 month exception extension is £188,954 and is 
funded as part of the Integrated Fund: Adults pooled budget with annual funding of 
£377,908 earmarked for the service met by contributions of £140,000 by Salford 
CCG and £237,908 by Salford City Council.

Page 11



PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christopher Conway, Procurement 
Category Manager, tel. 0161 686 6248

Procurement are happy to approve the recommendation for an exception in order to 
formally extend the current contract for an additional 6 months for period 1st April 
2020 to 30th September 2020 (as requested in the exception report).

The additional 6 months extension will allow SCC additional time to agree and sign 
off the new Carers Strategy and will allow additional time for a re-procurement 
exercise to be undertaken once the new Strategy is agreed and implemented.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

People’s Directorate

CONTACT OFFICER: Paul Walsh                          TEL. NO. 01612124844

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

All wards 

Page 12



award of contract 

Part 1 – open to the public ITEM NO.

_________________________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Strategic Director for Children and Adult Services

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

27th January 2016

_________________________________________________________________________________

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Salford Carers Service 
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board; 

Approve the award of the Contract for Salford Carers Service as detailed in the table below:
 

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Salford Carers Service

Name of Successful Contractor Gaddum Centre 
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 507162

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £734049.65 (2 years)
Contract Duration 24 months

Contract Start Date 01/04/2016
Contract End Date 31/03/2018

Optional Extension Period 1 24 months
Optional Extension Period 2 n/a

Who will approve each Extension Period? Procurement Board 
Contact Officer (Name & number) Glyn Meacher  0161 212 5643

Lead Service Group CHSC

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Tender (Open Procedure)

Framework Details (where applicable) n/a

Funding Source Revenue budget

_________________________________________________________________________________

Page 13



award of contract 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned contract.
_________________________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Procurement Board Report – 28th October 2016

Assistant Mayor for Adult Social Care Briefing - 

_________________________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  

Yes 
_________________________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

 Background,

Salford City Council and NHS Salford have a history of pooling funding to commission a range of 
carers services which support the 23,400 carers in the City and support delivery of the Carers 
strategy. The City Council takes responsibility for the procuring and managing of these contracts on 
behalf of both organisations. 

Due to the fact that the current contracts were due to end on March 31st 2016, a Commissioning 
Impact review was carried out on the future need for such services, the outcome of which resulted in 
the development of a new pathway for carers and a commissioning plan for services.  
 
This commissioning plan was presented to the relevant Assistant Mayors and was  approved by 
Assistant Mayor for Adults and Services for Older people on ….., Assistant Mayor for Health and 
Wellbeing on …… and Assistant Mayor for Children on ………  

Integral to the delivery of this commissioning plan and supporting the overall carers pathway was the 
commissioning of an holistic carers service which will deliver the following services:

 Organisational support and development 
 Advocacy for carers
 Advice and information for carers
 Generic support for carers
 Specialist support for
 Young Carers
 Carers of people with mental health problems

The funding available to support delivery of this service is £377,908 which is made up from:

£243227    Local Authority contribution contained within the Better Care Fund
£134681    CCG contribution contained within the Better Care fund

The specification for the service is enclosed as Appendix B.

Permission to tender this service was sought from Procurement Board on …….. and approved

Insert spec

Page 14



award of contract 

 The Procurement Process. 

The commissioning project team and procurement held an engagement event prior to the tender 
going live to raise awareness of the opportunity and to help shape the specification. Part of the 
presentation included social value to emphasise it’s the importance as part of contract delivery. In 
addition, Salford CVS were involved to promote the event and help stimulate the market.

The tender was advertised through the Chest – the North West online procurement hub to give 
maximum exposure. 

The ‘open procedure’ was utilised under the ‘Light Touch Regime’ of the Public Contract Regulations 
2015. 

Providers were required to supply the following information in order for the evaluation panel to 
evaluate each bid. The weightings are included for information.  

 Capability Questionnaire (Pass/Fail) – to test Providers had the required infrastructure and 
were financially sound to deliver the contract. 

 Quality Questionnaire (45%) – to test the Providers understanding of the specification and 
proposals to deliver the service

 Cost (30%) – a fixed price was submitted to deliver the service over the life contract.
 Presentation / Interview (25%) – Providers were invited to deliver a presentation & then 

interviewed to their outline proposals for the delivery of the service. There was also an 
opportunity for the panel to ask questions to clarify specific issues with the bid. 

The evaluation panel consisted of:

 Integrated Commissioning Manager - Carers
 Childrens Commissioning Manager  
 Integrated Commissioning Manager – Mental Health
 Commissioning Manager – Drugs and Alcohol

The results of this tender exercise are shown below;

Name of Bidder % Price 
score (30%)

% Quality 
score (70%)

% Overall 
Score (100%)

Cost (2 
year 

contract)

Gaddum Centre 30% 44.54% 74.54% £734049.65
Provider 2 29.74% 42.73% 72.47% £740419.00
Provider 3 29.99% 38.33% 68.32% £734345.00

Through the procurement process, a saving of £19950 will be realised over the duration of the 2 year 
contract against the two year allocated budget for the service.

The winning submission also included additional service provision at no extra cost to the Council. 

This is a two year contract with an optional two year extension.  The approval to enter into the 
extension period will be made by Procurement Board prior to the end of the initial two year contract 
period, subject to satisfactory performance and budget availability.  

 Social Value

The winning Provider has included the following social value s part of the contract delivery; 

Employment / training opportunities 

Page 15



award of contract 

 Creation of a Business Administration Apprentice that will link to the Young Adult Carers 
service. 

 Creation of placements for social work students and trainee counsellors within the service.
 Recruitment of 10 volunteer community Carers Champions each year.

Supply chain promotion

 Use of local and small suppliers as far as possible especially those who are registered 
supporters of the City Mayor’s Employment Charter and/or Charter Mark holders. 

Benefiting the local economy

 £334, 650 of the annual contract value will be spent within the City. Using the New Economic 
Foundation’s approved ‘Local Multiplier3’ calculation; this amount will recirculate within the 
City and represent an annual contribution to the local economy of approximately £815,000.

Commitment to the City Mayor’s Employment Charter

 Alignment with The Salford Standard. 
 Registered Charter Supporter and are working towards achieving the Charter Mark. We 

expect to submit our application by the May 2016 deadline. 
 Staff paid more than the living wage of £8.25 per hour and on guaranteed hours contracts. 
 All vacancies advertised locally in Salford.

Monitoring and evidencing Social Value contribution

Evidence of our social activities monitored through the following measures;

 Apprenticeships, placements and volunteering opportunities provided
 Expenditure records
 Demographic breakdown of carers supported
 Employment records
 Recruitment exercise records

4. Conclusion

The scope of the carers support service required to meet the needs of carers in of Salford has already 
been approved as a positive development. Following delivery of a robust procurement process we are 
recommending the award of contract to the Gaddum Centre. 

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Personalisation
 Promoting Independence Agenda
 Social Inclusion

________________________________________ _________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

EIA was carried out as part of the initial review process 

_________________________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Page 16



award of contract 

This is considered to be low risk as  

_________________________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

See financial comments below. 

_________________________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution of works the 
Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 as well as its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and 
the duties of Best and Social Value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities 
treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, failing 
which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. 

The procurement procedure undertaken in this matter is robust, and the appointment of the provider 
for this service follows an open tender process which is outlined within the body of the report, and 
which is compliant with the requirements of CSO’s and public procurement legislation. 

The award of the contract will commit the Council to a two year contract with the provider, with the 
option to extend for a further period of two years. Legal Services will advise and assist in the drafting 
of any contractual documentation in due course upon receipt of instructions. 
_________________________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Stephen Thynne, Finance Manager, 
Tel: 0161 778 0244 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Andy Briffa 0161 686 6296

Procurement comments are included in the main body of the report. 

_________________________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

_________________________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER:             Glyn Meacher               TEL. NO. 0161 212 5643
                                            
_________________________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All
_________________________________________________________________________________

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 – open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTORS FOR PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

 
TO 

Lead Member

On 20th September 2017

TITLE:  Salford Carer’s Support Contract and Carer’s Transformation Project

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that Procurement Board:

1. Notes the outcomes of the 15 month review of the Salford Carer’s Support Service delivered 
by the Carer’s Centre (Gaddum)

2. Approves the two year extension of the current Carer’s Support Contract for Salford Carer’s 
Centre, delivered by Gaddum, resulting a contract end date of 2020.

3. Approves a variation to the Carer’s Support Contract held by Gaddum for a one year period 
(July 1st 2017 to 30th June 2018, with an option to extend for a further six months) for the 
delivery of a Carer’s Transformation project which will be delivered from Salford Royal and 
Woodlands hospitals.

       3. Notes the intention to respecify and tender the Salford Carer’s Support Service in 2019/20 
(incorporating the learning from the Carer’s Transformation project), with a view to the new 
service being live from April 2020. 

Details

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Delivery of a Carer’s Support Service and Carer’s 
Transformation Project

Name of Successful Contractor The Gaddum Center
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
1348975

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

2. 

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £377,000 pa (Salford Support Service) 

Page 19



2

£101,691.66pa (Carer’s Transformation Project) 
Contract Duration Carer’s Support Contract - 2 years + option to extend 

for a further 2 years

Carers Transformation Project – 1 year + option to 
extend for a further 6 months

Contract Start Date Carer’s Support Contract: 1st April 2018 
Carer’s Transformation Project: 1st July 2017

Contract End Date Carer’s Support Contract: 31st March 2020
Carer’s Transformation Project: 31st June 2018

Optional Extension Period 1 Carer’s Transformation Project: 6 months (Dec 2018)
Optional Extension Period 2 n/a

Who will approve each Extension Period? Salford Together Programme Transformation Board 
and Procurement Board 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Clare Mayo, Integrated Commissioning Manager, 
0161 212 4236

Lead Service Group Community Health and Social Care
 

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent 
that the time needed to comply with the rules would 
be prejudicial to the Council’s interests
Specialist services/supplies which are available 
only from one supplier. For example, specialist 
niche consultants or suppliers where there is a 
sole supplier of patented or proprietary articles, 
materials or services exclusively provided by a 
statutory undertaker or other bodies
For reasons of compatibility with existing 
services/products – for example, equipment 
that needs parts from its own manufacturer
Where any of the standing orders are 
inconsistent with any legislative requirements, 
in which instance the provisions of the 
appropriate legislation shall prevail
Where the Council can demonstrate that an 
integrated or strategic approach to 
procurement is being implemented and there is 
a requirement to align services or contracts to 
co-terminus end dates
There are value for money reasons justifying a 
CSO Exception
School Governors: in relation to the Local 
Management of Schools (LMS), where schools 
have adopted their own standing orders
The shared legal service, in respect of the 
appointment of counsel
Strategic Director of CHSC: contracts for the 
provision of personal care services or facilities 
pursuant to the National Health Service and 
Community Care Act 1990

Page 20



3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

A procurement exercise was undertaken in 2016 resulting in the procurement of a holistic carer’s 
service with a refreshed carer’s pathway. A number of savings opportunities have been realised over 
the past few years in relation to carer’s provision. 

Gaddum was successful in the procurement exercise for the delivery of Carer’s Support Services in 
Salford and were awarded a 2 year contract, commencing on April 1st 2016 for a two year period with 
the option to extend for a further 2 years. 

At the time of tender, all applicants were advised that the City Council was in the process of seeking 
funding for a new Carer’s transformation project which would be offering intensive support to carers 
identified within Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT). It was further explained, that if funding for 
this project was secured, it would be expected that the successful tenderer would deliver this 
contract alongside the current carer’s support service.

Funding for the transformation project has now been awarded from Salford’s Health and Social Care 
Transformation Fund (resulting in no financial implications for the City Council) and it has been 
extended to cover carers identified within Woodlands hospital. The report requests a variation to the 
Carer’s Support Contract to enable to project to be delivered by the same provider (Gaddum) for a 
maximum period of 18 months. 

A review was conducted 15 months in to the current Carer’s Support Contract with a view to 
establishing a summary of performance to date, identification of any issues in contract delivery and 
provision of recommendations in relation to the extension period of the contract. The review 
identified satisfactory performance in relation to the delivery of the contract and recommends 
implementing the optional extension period of two years, taking the contract end date to 2020. This 
would provide an opportunity to utilise learning from the Carer’s Transformation Project to revise 
the Carer’s Support Contract Specification, with a view to procuring a revised service, starting April 
1st 2020.  

KEY DECISION:  Yes

DETAIL:

1.1 BACKGROUND:

A procurement exercise was undertaken in 2016 resulting in the procurement of a holistic carer’s 
service with a refreshed carer’s1 pathway. The service was designed to act as a hub for delivery of 
organisational support, and the provision of advice and support to carers. This contract includes the 
following elements: 

 Carers identification and organisational support 
 Provision of advice and information
 Advocacy
 Generic Support 
 Mental Health 

1 A carer is defined as ‘someone who provides support or who looks after a family member, partner or friend who needs help because of 
their age, physical or mental illness or disability. This would not usually include someone paid or employed to carry out that role, or 
someone who is a volunteer (Care Act 2014). 

Page 21



4

 Young Carers 
 Young Adult Carers 

1.2 15 MONTH REVIEW OF THE CARER’S SUPPORT CONTRACT 

A table-top review was conducted 15 months in to the Carers Support Contract, delivered by 
Gaddum, with a view to establishing a summary of performance to date, identification of any issues 
in contract delivery and provision of recommendations in relation to the extension period of the 
contract.  The review included the following approaches: 

 Analysis of data presented at quarterly monitoring meetings 
 Discussions between commissioners and senior management 
 Discussions between commissioners and operational staff
 Engagement with key stakeholders e.g. mental health services 

A summary of the outcomes of the commissioning review are provided below: 

 Needs and Demand –The service is meeting expectations set out in the contract in relation to 
demand and a recent review of caseloads has ensured that the appropriate level of support 
is provided to meet the varying needs of carers. Carer’s star data2 evidences improved 
outcomes for the carer across a range of domains including; health, work, the caring role, 
time for the carer and managing at home.   

 Strategic Relevance and Commissioning Approaches– Gaddum will be partners in the Carer’s 
Transformation Project, being taken forward with Salford Royal as part of the transformation 
agenda. This will enable testing of a new way of supporting carers, which may inform future 
development of the specification. Work around the GM and National approaches to Carers 
will also influence future delivery. 

 Pathway Developments – Workers have been specifically located in mental health services to 
identify and support carers who may be supporting individuals in crisis situations. This 
includes the Early Intervention in Psychosis service, Home Based Treatment teams and 
Inpatient Services at Meadowbrook Unit. 

 Quality Considerations – Feedback from carers using the service has been positive. 
Challenges in the initial stages of the contract relating to location within mental health 
services have now been resolved and feedback from carer’s workers and mental health 
teams is positive. Commissioners are robustly monitoring the co-location approach with 
mental health to ensure that the identification and support of carers is delivered in line with 
the specification requirements. Improvements in performance monitoring frameworks have 
resulted in clearer data reporting to inform development discussions. Closer working 
between the Carer’s service and key partners in the city (e.g. SRFT/ GMMH) has resulted in a 
smoother access to support for Salford’s Carers. Initial challenges with the implementation of 
Carers Care Act Advocacy being delivered in line with the specification have now been 
resolved, however this is again being closely monitored by Commissioners to ensure that 
delivery is embedded in the service.  

 Social Value and Added Value – Gaddum have supported social value via a range of 
approaches including: 

- Development of a number of peer led groups within the city, all led by carers who 
volunteer their time to support other people undertaking the caring role. This has 
resulted in carers developing their skills and experience in supporting group activities 
and peer advocacy. 

2 The Carer’s Star looks to measure wellbeing and the impact of caring on the individual across a number of domains including 
health, time for self, managing at home, finances, work and wellbeing. 

Page 22



5

- Working with existing carers peer groups to co-ordinate approaches and maximise 
resources

- Development of apprentice and administrative support positions within the service to 
enable local young people to develop their skills within the work place whilst earning. 

- Delivering the contract as a Living Wage Employer.  
 

1.3 CARERS TRANSFORMATION PROJECT 

In April 2017, Transformation Funding was agreed for a project in relation to Carer’s Support. The 
detailed project has been developed by Salford City Council, working in partnership with SRFT, 
Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust, NHS England and Gaddum. 

The project was initially envisaged to be delivered in the first two years of the Carer’s Support 
Service. However, due to delays in securing this funding, caused by changes to the way that 
Vanguard funding was to be allocated and new governance structures being set up for the 
management of Transformation funding, the project only received approval on April 2nd.

The project will seek to identify carers within two hospital settings (carers supporting people 
admitted to Salford Royal and carers of older people with mental health needs in Woodlands 
Hospital) and offer them an intensive package of support for a short time period in order to see if this 
model of support can lead to improved outcomes and cost benefits for both the carer and cared for. 
A copy of the Project Initiation Document for the project is enclosed as Appendix A.  

Learning from this transformation project will be useful in redesigning the wider approach to carers 
support and is likely to result in a redesigned specification at the end of the existing contract period. 
A contract variation to the carer’s support contract would allow alignment of the timescales for these 
two pieces of work, with a view to developing our support to carers in the future. 

Due to a delay in funding allocation for this project, it is now not possible to deliver the services 
within the first two years of the Carers Support Service contract as was originally planned. Therefore 
a contract variation is requested for a period of no more than 18 months given that: 

 The delivery of the new service needs to be delivered by the current provider of the Carers 
Support service, so that the City can continue to implement its plan for carer’s support of 
having service delivery delivered within a holistic service commissioned from one 
organisation.

 That this service would be delivered by the provider of the carer’s support service has been 
referenced in a formal procurement exercise

 Gaddum were successful in a tender exercise for the delivery of holistic carer’s support 
service which followed current City Council procurement practice. 

This approach would align the strategic approach to carers, providing time to revise and retender the 
support service specification, based on the learning gained from the transformation project. 

2.0 FUNDING

The Carer’s Support Contract is delivered at cost of £377,000 pa. 

The Carers Transformation Project has secured funding of £151,734.99 from the Salford Health and 
Social Care Transformation fund, broken down as £101,691.66 in the first year of the project and a 
further £50,043.33 for a six month extension, which will be subject to a review of the outcomes 

Page 23



6

being delivered after 9 months of the project. There is no request for further funding from Salford 
Council. 

__________________________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Salford Carers Strategy 2013 – 2016
Service and Financial plan of the Salford Together programme

__________________________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

Equality issues have been considered in developing the project brief for this service and Gaddum 
were measured on their ability to meet the needs of all of Salford citizens as part of the tendering 
process for the main Carers support project.  
__________________________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Assessment of risk of undertaking this approach to carer’s services is deemed as low. 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Funding for the Carers Transformation Project is sourced from the Salford Health and Social Care 
Transformation Fund. 

Funding for the Carer’s Support Service sits with the Council as part of the pooled budget 
arrangements.

__________________________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning goods, services or works the Council must comply with the public procurement 
regulations and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s). In that regard, the Carer’s Support 
Service Contract was procured in 2016 for a 2 year period with an option to extend for up to 2 
further years.    

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being extended (or modified 
providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of the contract), where the original 
agreement makes provision for the extension. CSO’s also allow for contract extensions to be made.
 
When the contract was originally procured and awarded, it was made clear that the initial term 
would be subject to a potential extension of two years, hence any risk that any extension granted 
could be subject to realistic challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it ought to have 
been put out again to tender and advertised in accordance with public contract regulations and 
CSO’s, is low, and the option to extend within the agreement is now being properly exercised.

Page 24



7

Also in accordance with CSO’s, where provision is made within an existing contract for an extension 
to the term, and the value is over £100,000, approval should be sought from Procurement Board. 

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution of 
works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 
as well as the provisions of its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and 
the duties of Best and Social value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities 
treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, failing 
which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge.

In exceptional circumstances, where the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders permit, the Council 
may dispense with strict compliance of its CSO’s, and the report sets out the reasons for the request 
for the exception, in accordance with paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s. Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be 
authorised by an approval from the Procurement Board, there is still a risk of challenge from 
aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been followed on the basis that it ought to 
have been advertised and put out to competition.

The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract being awarded. 
Here the period proposed is relatively short and not for a particularly high value, and a tight time 
scale for the service to commence. Accordingly the risk of any such challenge may be regarded as 
extremely low. 

The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically, efficiently and 
effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public procurement. The Council has 
considered the circumstances in this matter and concluded that the recommendation to award the 
contract for the development and delivery of a new Carers Support project based within Salford 
Royal and Woodlands Hospitals to Gaddum is considered to be of least risk and of most benefit to 
the Council.

__________________________ ________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied By: Stephen Thynne, Finance Manager, tel 778 0244  

An exception to the Council’s contractual standing orders is sought to allow for the award of the 
contract for the carers support project at Salford Royal and Woodlands Hospitals to The Gaddum 
Centre. The contract is for 12 months from 1st July 2017 with a value of £101,691.66 with an option 
to extend for a further 6 months with a value of £50,043.33. Funding of £151,734.99 has been 
secured from the Integrated Care Programme Transformation Fund for the delivery of this service 
and as such there are no additional financial implications to the Council.

___________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Christine Flisk ext 6245

A review has been undertaken by the commissioning manager that has recommend the extension of 
the contract as the Gaddum Centre have provided satisfactory performance and demonstrate value 
for money for the Council.  The commissioning manager are conducting a review of the service 
delivery and evaluating the effectiveness of a transformation project that will inform the 
specification to undertake future procurement activity in 2018/9.
___________________________________________________________________

Page 25



8

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICERS: Clare Mayo  - Integrated Commissioning Manager Tel no 212 4236

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): The support provided under this contract is accessed by 
carers in all Salford wards. 
___________________________________________________________________

Page 26



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director Place

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

24th July 2019 

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for Salford Quays, Replacement of Life buoys with Throwlines

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board  

(1) Approve an exception to Contractual Standing Orders in accordance with part 5 
Paragraph 3.1a as follows:

 Specialist services/supplies which are available only from one supplier. For 
example, specialist niche consultants or suppliers where there is a sole 
supplier of patented or proprietary articles, or materials or services 
exclusively provided by a statutory undertaker or other bodies.

(2) Approve the award of the Contract for Salford Quays, Replacement of Life 
buoys with Throwlines  as detailed in the table below:

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Supply and install throwline rescue system to 
replace life buoys at Salford Quays

Name of Successful Contractor Reach and Rescue
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
07223197

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Public Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Page 27

Agenda Item 5b



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Contract Value £33,877.00 Full Project
Contract Duration 2 months

Contract Start Date 29/07/2019
Contract End Date 27/09/2019

Optional Extension Period 1 2 Months
Optional Extension Period 2 n/a

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Dave Lyon 779- 4971

Lead Service Group Place
Specialist services/supplies which are available only from 
one supplier. For example, specialist niche consultants or 
suppliers where there is a sole supplier of patented or 
proprietary articles, materials or services exclusively 
provided by a statutory undertaker or other bodies

Funding Source Capital Programme

(3) Note that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in 2 above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service is 
to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek request an exception to Contractual Standing 
Orders to approve the award of a contract for Salford Quays, Replacement of Life 
buoys with Throwlines.

1. Background 

Salford quays have 77 life buoy rings and housings throughout the site some of    
which do not serve water that is Salford Councils responsibility.

The rings are not locked in the housing and are open to abuse and vandalism                  
this usually ends with the life ring being thrown into the water which makes it   
unusable if required in an emergency.

Daily checks are undertaken Monday to Friday, except bank holidays, to ensure 
the life rings are in the housing units.

2. Details

It is recommended these are replaced with a system which is being promoted 
and recommended by Greater Manchester’s Fire & Rescue, this equipment 
encompasses a lockable unit with a throw line and instruction board, the line can 
be only accessed with a code from dialling 999. Each unit has a bespoke number 

Page 28



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

which relates to its position which gives the location for the emergency service to 
attend and assist.

Following meetings with GMFRS it was noted that the number of existing life 
buoys were excessive and a reduction could be possible, therefore with the 
removal of the life buoys from SCC non-maintained water and reduction in overall 
numbers to 40 new units.

Reach and Rescue who are in partnership with GMFRS on this initiative have 
provided a contract price of £30,520 for the supply and installation  of 40 units 
including liaising with GMFRS for the inclusion of the units on their location plans 
with keypad codes.

No other supplier is available who can deliver to the same specification and 
provide the interaction and benefits of its relationship with GMFRS.

It is therefore requested that an exception is made to Contractual Standing 
Orders and that Reach and Rescue Limited are directly appointed to undertake 
the project within the key programme dates.

The scheme costs are:-

£
Tender     30,520.00

Professional fees
and charges      3,357.00

_________
 £33,877.00
=========

There is funding available under the 2019/20 Capital Programme to cover the 
above costs.

3. Social Value

Reach and Rescue Limited are a Lancashire based company and the ‘one off’ 
nature of this relatively low value specialist contract offers limited opportunities 
for providing significant Salford social value outcomes. The company though is 
accredited under quality, environmental and health and safety requirements.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  N/A

Page 29



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

The installation of the units will greatly reduce the risk of piece lifesaving equipment 
not being in place when needed.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

The source of funding is from within the 2019/20 Capital Programme.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel: 219 6323

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 
the execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, 
failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. For contracts 
of this value the Council would usually undertake an exercise to obtain quotes from 
three suitably qualified providers.

However in exceptional circumstances where the Council’s Contractual Standing 
Orders permit, the Council may dispense with strict compliance of its CSO’s, and the 
report sets out the reasons for the request for the exception, in accordance with  
paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s. Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by an 
approval from the Procurement Board, there is still a risk of challenge from aggrieved 
providers if the usual tender process has not been followed on the basis that it ought 
to have been advertised and put out to competition.

The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract 
being awarded. The report asks Procurement Board to grant an exception to CSO’s 
and appoint Reach and Rescue Limited to supply and install throwline rescue 
equipment at Salford quays.  The award of the contract is a direct appointment of the 
contractor to enable the installation of the throwline units in partnership with GMFRS. 

The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically, 
efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public 
procurement. The Council has considered the circumstances in this matter and 
concluded that the recommendation to award the contract to Reach and Rescue to 
be of least risk and of most benefit to the Council.

The reasons for the requested direct award approval are set out in the report, such 
as the fact that there is urgency required in appointing a contractor and the nature of 
the works is of a specialist nature with a limited number of suitable local providers. 

Page 30



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Accordingly, the risk of challenge to the award of the contract is real but may be 
regarded as extremely low in the circumstances.   

Legal Services will assist in preparing the necessary contractual documentation to 
engage Reach and Rescue Limited upon receipt of instructions to ensure that the 
Council's interests are protected.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Gemma Singleton, Finance Officer 0161 
793 2578. Funding is available through the capital programme.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire (Corporate 
Procurement Team) Tel: 686 6244

The procurement implications are detailed in Part 2 of the report.  These indicate that 
the Procurement Board has the power to grant an exception and award the contract 
on the grounds indicated in the report.

Any awarding of a contract without competition has a risk of challenge even if that 
risk of challenge is low as indicated in the legal comments above.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Openshaw – Assistant Director  TEL. NO. 793 - 3050_____________________________
                                                               TEL. NO.

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

Ordsall

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

Agenda Item 5c



This page is intentionally left blank



Sample B – award of contract 

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director People 

TO

Procurement Board

ON

24th July 2019

 
TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Approved Flexible Procurement System 

to Supply Alternative Provision to Salford Pupils 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Alternative Provision 
to Salford Pupils as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Alternative Provision 2019 FPS – Lot 1 Full-
time Alternative Provision – Min of 25 hours 

per week

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

Edstart (Provider 7),
Salford Open Learning (Provider 22),

SMS Education (Provider 23),
Together Trust Provider 28),

 
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Multiple Providers 

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Page 35



Sample B – award of contract 

Contract Value
Up to £55,250 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Choose an item.

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 Months
Optional Extension Period 4 12 Months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Alternative Provision 2019 FPS – Lot 2 - Part-
time Alternative Provision – Sports Science / 

Health & Wellbeing

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

Myskills (Provider 14),
SMS Education (Provider 23),
Together Trust (Provider 28),

YMCA Manchester (Provider 30).

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Multiple Providers

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Page 36



Sample B – award of contract 

Contract Value
Up to £104,720 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Per Annum 
(estimated 
average)

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 months
Optional Extension Period 4 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Alternative Provision 2019 FPS Lot 3 - Part-
time Alternative Provision – Sports Coaching / 

Life Skills

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

Myskills (Provider 14),
Sale Sharks (Provider 21),

SMS Education (Provider 23).

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Multiple Providers

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Contract Value Up to £104,720 Per Annum 

Page 37



Sample B – award of contract 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

(estimated 
average)

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 months

Optional Extension Period 4 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Alternative Provision 2019 FPS Lot 4 - Part-
time Alternative Provision – Hair and Beauty

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

SMS Education (Provider 23),
Social Inclusion Network (CSIN) (Provider 24)

Together Trust (Provider 28).
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Multiple Providers

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Contract Value
Up to £100,912 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Per Annum 
(estimated 
average)

Page 38



Sample B – award of contract 

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 24 months
Optional Extension Period 2 24 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Alternative Provision 2019 FPS Lot 5 - Part-

time Alternative Provision – Construction

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

ForViva (Provider 8),
Together Trust (Provider 28).

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Multiple Providers

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Contract Value
Up to £37,400 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Per Annum 
(estimated 
average)

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months

Page 39



Sample B – award of contract 

Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 months
Optional Extension Period 4 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Alternative Provision 2019 FPS Lot 6 - One-

to-One Tutoring 

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

Bounceback Education (Provider 2),
CVS Specialist Tutors (Provider 5),

Gorse Hill Studios (Provider 10),
MEAP (Provider 12),

Monarch Education (Provider 13),
Next Level Learning (Provider 15),

Nisai Virtual Academy (Provider 16),
Randstaad (Provider 19),

Sugarman Education (Provider 25),
Vision for Education (Provider 29),
YMCA Manchester (Provider 30). 

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Multiple Providers 

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Contract Value
Up to £15,000 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Choose an item.

Page 40



Sample B – award of contract 

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 Months
Optional Extension Period 4 12 Months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Alternative Provision 2019 FPS  Lot 7 - 

Complementary – Animal Care

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on Ranking and 
capacity to provide services based on 

referrals).

Carrington Riding Centre (Provider 3),
Phoenix Alternative Provision (Provider 17).

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Multiple Providers

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

     

Contract Value
Up to £5,712

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Per Annum 
(estimated 
average)

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019

Page 41



Sample B – award of contract 

Contract End Date 31/07/2023
Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 months
Optional Extension Period 4 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Direct)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Alternative Provision 2019 FPS   Lot 8 - 

Complementary – Innovation

Name of Successful Contractor

Various Providers (based on future call 
offs/mini competitions under lot 8).

Brighter Futures (Provider 1),
Bounceback Education (Provider 2),

Carrington Riding Centre (Provider 3),
Citywall (Provider 4),

CVS Specialist Tutors (Provider 5),
Edintervention (Provider 6),

Edstart Specialist education LTD (Provider 7),
ForViva Group (Provider 8),
Gorilla Warfare (Provider 9),

Gorse Hill Studios (Provider 10),
Lynx Learning LTD (Provider 11),

Making Education a Priority (MEaP) (Provider 
12),

Monarch Education (Provider 13),
MySkills LTD (Provider 14),

Next Level Learning (Provider 15),
Nisai Virtual Academy (Provider 16),

Phoenix Alternative Provision (Provision 17),

Page 42



Sample B – award of contract 

Randstad (Provider 19),
ROAR POTENTIAL LTD (Provider 20),

Sale Sharks Community Trust (Provider 21),
Salford Open Learning (Provider 22),

SMS Education (Provider 23),
Social Inclusion Network (CSIN) (Provider 

24),
Sugarman Education (Provider 25),

The Prince's Trust (Provider 26),
The White Room (Provider 27),
Together Trust (Provider 28),

Vision For Education (Provider 29),
YMCA Manchester (Provider 30).

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Multiple

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Choose an item.

Contract Value
Up to £35,000 

(dependent on no of 
referrals per annum)

Choose an item.

Contract Duration 48 Months
Contract Start Date 02/09/2019
Contract End Date 31/07/2023

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months
Optional Extension Period 3 12 months
Optional Extension Period 4 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 
Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

DN409557

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)

Page 43



Sample B – award of contract 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Aim of the Flexible Procurement System 

Although the vast majority of young people attend mainstream secondary schools 
and academies to receive their education in KS3 and KS4, some young people 
benefit from receiving some, or all, of their education and support in 'off-site' settings 
that are delivered away from their school.

Where alternative provision has been arranged for a pupil, it is important that 
the provision continues to meet the same quality standards that would be 
expected for education being delivered by the schools. This includes:

 an appropriate curriculum offer, delivered by qualified staff, and; 
 a safe learning environment that is compliant with relevant safeguarding and 

child protection policies and procedures.

To support Salford schools with this process, the Council is creating an FPS, which 
schools can use to source and commission suitable alternative provision for their 
pupils in KS3 and KS4. There is clear evidence that this process has driven up 
quality and safeguarding whilst delivering substantial savings and has evidenced 
improvements in recent school Ofsted inspections.

The process for issuing calls for competition (Invitations to Tender) for individual 
requirements will be managed by the Council.

Organisations will be required to complete the Council's application process and 
provide appropriate evidence and documentation to demonstrate how they satisfy 
the requirements set out in this Service Specification, which include:

 arrangements for areas such as safeguarding, health and safety and data 
protection;

 the monitoring and reporting of attendance and pupil progress;

This is a Flexible Procurement System is in respect of eight Lots which are as 
follows:

 Lot 1 - Full-time Alternative Provision – Min of 25 hours per week
 Lot 2 - Part-time Alternative Provision – Sports Science / Health & Wellbeing
 Lot 3 - Part-time Alternative Provision – Sports Coaching / Life Skills
 Lot 4 - Part-time Alternative Provision – Hair and Beauty
 Lot 5 - Part-time Alternative Provision – Construction
 Lot 6 - One-to-One Tutoring - 
 Lot 7 - Complementary – Animal Care
 Lot 8 - Complementary – Innovation

Page 44



Sample B – award of contract 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Report to Procurement Board, 28th November 2018

PB 05c) ROD - 
Alternative Provision.doc

The reports provides an update with regards to the previous Pilot/DPS and confirms 
that approval has been given through PB to retender a new FPS by April 2019.

LM Report 28th March 2019 – Report identifies savings achieved from the previous 
Pilot/DPS and confirms the plans to close the current Pilot/DPS and replace with the 
new FPS from April 2019.

FTE_AP_Pilot - LT 
paper March 19 (1).docx

KEY DECISION:  

Yes – if total value of contract (i.e. value over full cycle of contract including any 
potential extension period) is greater than £350,000 

DETAILS: 

1. Background,

Whilst no official approval has been sought from PB previously to go out to tender 
through the official PB route it has been noted that this was discussed in the last LT 
meeting that a new procurement exercise would be undertaken, please see LT 
meeting report.

We are seeking official approval from PB to award the contracts as identified in the 
detailed tables in this report please note:

We are seeking approval to:

 Directly award to a single provider for lot 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 7 based on MEAT 
(Most economically advantageous tender).

Page 45



Sample B – award of contract 

 Directly award to multiple providers for lot 6 based on MEAT (Most 
economically advantageous tender).

 Award a place on the framework for all providers under lot 8 whereby call offs 
will be undertaken as and when a referral is required.

2. The Procurement Process
 The tender process followed was an over OJEU Open Tender.

 30 tenders were received via the Chest to apply for a place on the flexible 
procurement framework for alternative provision.

 Lot 1 – 4 Providers
 Lot 2 – 4 Providers
 Lot 3 – 3 Providers
 Lot 4 – 3 Providers
 Lot 5 – 2 Providers
 Lot 6 – 11 Providers
 Lot 7 – 2 Providers
 Lot 8 – 30 Providers

 The Lots were awarded based on a ranking system with each separate lot having 
a hierarchy of potential providers. The awarding process for each individual lot 
are as follows:

 Lot 1 - Single provider award with additional awards based on ranking.
 Lot 2 - Single provider award with additional awards based on ranking.
 Lot 3 - Single provider award with additional awards based on ranking.
 Lot 4 - Single provider award with additional awards based on ranking.
 Lot 5 - Single provider award with additional awards based on ranking.
 Lot 6 - Several Providers awards based on ranking.
 Lot 7 - Single provider award with additional awards based on ranking.
 Lot 8 - Several Providers awards based on Call off being undertaken 

via the chest for future requirements from September 2019.

 81 Expressions of interest were received from providers through the open 
invitation to tender process.

 The price was set at 30% and quality ratio was set at 70% as specified in the 
tender documentation. 

 The Services to Schools group was involved in the evaluation.

 Produce a table like the following example to show outcome of tender – only 
the winning bidder should be named, the other bidders should be anonymised

Page 46



Sample B – award of contract 

Lot 1 Provider 7 Provider 22 Provider 23 Provider 28

Weighted Price Score (30%) 30.00% 29.99% 28.71% 9.87%
Service Proposal score 

(70%) 50.00% 34.00% 55.00% 53.00%

Total Score (100%) 80.00% 63.99% 83.71% 62.87%

Ranking 2 3 1 4

Lot 2 Provider 14 Provider 23 Provider 28 Provider 30

Weighted Price Score (30%) 30.00% 28.65% 9.85% 8.75%
Service Proposal score 

(70%) 37.00% 59.00% 53.00% 56.00%

Total Score (100%) 67.00% 87.65% 62.85% 64.75%
Ranking 2 1 4 3

Lot 3 Provider 14 Provider 21 Provider 23

Weighted Price Score (30%) 22.85% 30.00% 21.82%
Service Proposal score 

(70%) 37.00% 41.00% 59.00%

Total Score (100%) 59.85% 71.00% 80.82%
Ranking 3 2 1

Lot 4 Provider 23 Provider 24 Provider 28

Weighted Price Score (30%) 28.91% 30.00% 9.94%
Service Proposal score 

(70%) 59.00% 66.00% 55.00%

Total Score (100%) 87.91% 96.00% 53.00%
Ranking 2 1 3

Lot 5 Provider 8 Provider 28

Weighted Price Score (30%) 30.00% 10.31%
Service Proposal score 

(70%) 40.00% 53.00%

Total Score (100%) 70.00% 63.31%
Ranking 1 2

Page 47



Sample B – award of contract 

Lot 6 Provider 
2

Provider 
5

Provider 
10

Provider 
12

Provider 
13

Provider 
15

Provider 
16

Provider 
19

Provider 
25

Provider 
29

Provider 30

Weighted 
Price 
Score 

(30%)
13.64% 12.00% 10.53% 30.00% 15.00% 13.51% 19.35% 17.14% 12.00% 14.29% 16.67%

Service 
Proposal 

score 
(70%)

36.00% 4.00% 47.00% 16.00% 49.00% 56.00% 28.00% 54.00% 23.00% 54.00% 56.00%

Total 
Score 

(100%)
49.64% 16.00% 57.53% 46.00% 64.00% 69.51% 47.35% 71.14% 35.00% 68.29% 72.67%

Ranking 7 11 6 9 5 3 8 2 10 4 1

Lot 7 Provider 3 Provider 17

Weighted Price Score (30%) 30.00% 18.53%
Service Proposal score 

(70%) 53.00% 12.00%

Total Score (100%) 83.00% 30.53%
Ranking 1 2

Lot 8 Provider 1 Provider 2 Provider 3 Provider 4 Provider 5 Provider 6 Provider 7 Provider 8 Provider 9 Provider 10

Service Proposal score (70%) 34.00% 36.00% 53.00% 56.00% 4.00% 38.00% 50.00% 40.00% 34.00% 47.00%

Total Score (70%) 34.00% 36.00% 53.00% 56.00% 4.00% 38.00% 50.00% 40.00% 34.00% 47.00%
Ranking 22 18 8 3 29 16 10 15 22 12

Provider 11 Provider 12 Provider 13 Provider 14 Provider 15 Provider 16 Provider 17 Provider 19 Provider 20 Provider 21 Provider 22

36.00% 16.00% 49.00% 37.00% 56.00% 28.00% 12.00% 54.00% 35.00% 41.00% 35.00%

36.00% 16.00% 49.00% 37.00% 56.00% 28.00% 12.00% 54.00% 35.00% 41.00% 35.00%
19 27 11 17 3 24 28 6 21 14 20

Provider 23 Provider 24 Provider 25 Provider 26 Provider 27 Provider 28 Provider 29 Provider 30

59.00% 66.00% 23.00% 46.00% 28.00% 53.00% 54.00% 56.00%

59.00% 66.00% 23.00% 46.00% 28.00% 53.00% 54.00% 56.00%
2 1 26 13 25 8 6 3

The current framework will run for four years with the options to extend on an annual 
basis for a further 4 years. 

 KPIs and Contract Monitoring will be monitored on an ongoing basis by 
Sheila Arnott.

Page 48



Sample B – award of contract 

3. Social Value 

The Contractor’s ability to deliver Social Value outcomes was assessed as part of 
the tender process whereby a 10% weighted Social Value question was put forward 
to all providers which formed part of the quality evaluation. An unweighted Social 
Value question was also included around how the bidders’ organisation could deliver 
any additional social value throughout the contract term. All awarded bidders had 
demonstrated a satisfactory capacity to deliver Social Value outcomes.

Bidders were asked a series of questions that covered the following areas which 
would deliver Social Value outcomes during the contract term.

 Reducing worklessness and helping people into employment (for example 
through employing local people or recruiting local people as volunteers )

 Buying local goods and services

 Tackling health inequalities

 Actively promoting equalities and community cohesion 

 Increasing community resilience – people’s ability to help themselves and 
each other 

All of the successful providers for the Lots 1,2,3,4,5,6,7 and 8 had all provided 
satisfactory or better responses to the social value questions.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Exclusion reduction strategy. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

Not applicable.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

If the contract is not awarded for lots 1,2,3,4,5 and 7 then this will have  a detrimental 
impact on service quality to a vulnerable group of people who live in Salford.

Page 49



Sample B – award of contract 

The impact on Lot 8 is limited at this stage as this lot is primarily for call offs for 
future requirements for any provision required from September 2019. 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

SCC hold a budget of approximately £60k per annum and all Secondary Schools 
and Academies will be forwarding all referrals to SCC for all future referrals from 
September 2019. 

SCC have agreed to pay all Providers directly and will be invoicing Schools for the 
cost of their provision. It is anticipated that the Schools budget share will be 
approximately £1.4million.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a 
contract including framework and other arrangements may be subject to legal 
challenge from an aggrieved provider.

The report sets out the details for appointing bidders to the Council’s Flexible 
Procurement System for alternative provision of services to vulnerable children, for 
which there are 8 different lots. As outlined in the report, the tender and proposed 
awards follow an OJEU compliant process, with bidders being scored on a MEAT 
basis before being appointed to the framework.

The purpose of the arrangement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the 
Council, as and when those services are required. This report confirms that an open 
tender procedure was undertaken by the Council to procure the services in a 
compliant way which will help ensure that the Council also achieves Best Value. This 
will mitigate against the threat of challenge to the award to the successful providers 
and any challenge, should it materialise, is unlikely to be successful.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Debbie Fulton, Finance Officer

The funding is from the recharge to the schools and a £60,000 contribution towards 
staffing from the DSG high needs block.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Christopher Conway, 
Procurement Category Manager, tel. 0161 686 6248

Page 50



Sample B – award of contract 

Procurement are happy to approve the recommendation to award the framework 
contract for period 2nd September 2019 to 31st July 2023 (as requested in the 
Procurement Board report).

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

People’s Directorate. 

CONTACT OFFICER: Karen Hamer/Sheila Arnott          TEL. NO .01617780311

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

All wards.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Salford City Council - Record of Decision

I, Councillor Bill Hinds, as chair of the Procurement Board and in exercise of the 
powers contained within the Council Constitution do hereby approve:

1. An exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow the use of £102,534 to 
spot-purchase additional placements for pupils referred onto the pilot mid-
year.  
To support the highly personalised and bespoke nature of the provision 
needed for learners.

2. An exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award of £9,000 to City 
West Housing Trust for five construction placements. 
To secure five one-day per week construction placements

3. The following contract awards issued via the AP-DPS

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Full Time Provision

Name of Successful Contractor The Clifton Centre/ Salford Open Learning

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Public Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £42,500 Full Project

Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018

Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Part Time Provision – Physical Activity / Wellbeing

Name of Successful Contractor The Sports School Partnership

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

3785437

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £99,998 Full Project

Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018

Contract End Date 26/07/2019Page 53



Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Part Time Provision – Sports Coaching / Life Skills

Name of Successful Contractor SMS Coaching

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

07725711

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £99,998 Full Project

Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018

Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Part Time Provision – Hair & Beauty 

Name of Successful Contractor SMS Coaching

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

07725711

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £42,200 Full Project

Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018

Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Detail required

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Part Time Provision – Animal Care

Name of Successful Contractor Carrington Riding Centre

Supplier Registration Number
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

03753552

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £4,760 Full Project

Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018

Contract End Date 26/07/2019Page 54



Options considered and rejected were; 

5 Part Time Provision – 
Construction

£35,000 3 No award -

7 Complementary – 
Bespoke

£27,000 8 No award -

Lots 5 and 7, the DPS panel determined that no award should be made due to 
unsatisfactory outcomes from the bidding process. In part, this was because of the 
DPS not supporting the highly personalised and bespoke nature of the provision 
needed for learners, but also because the quality of the submissions were poor 
and it was not possible to make an informed decision about the appropriateness of 
respective providers’ proposed offer.

Assessment of Risk;
The source of funding is from secondary schools included in the pilot
Legal Advice obtained: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor
Financial Advice obtained:  Debbie Fulton - Finance Officer
Procurement Advice obtained:  Christine Flisk – Procurement Manager

The following documents have been used to assist the decision process.
Piloting the bulk-purchasing of full-time equivalent Alternative Provision 
placements for pupils in KS3 and KS4

Contact Officer:  Karen Hamer Tel No: 0161 778 0312

* The Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s Services has 
previously been briefed on, and indicated his support for, the 
proposals.

* The appropriate scrutiny committee to call-in the decision is the 
Children’s Scrutiny Panel.

Signed:     BILL HINDS               Dated:      28 November 2018
Lead Member 

 

FOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES USE ONLY

* This decision was published on 28 November 2028      
                                      
* This decision will come in force at 4.00 p.m. on 5 December 2018                                     

unless it is called-in in accordance with the Decision Making Process Rules.
Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



1

 Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE

 TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES

TITLE: Mid term review of the pilot to bulk-purchase Alternative Provision 
placements for pupils in KS3 and KS4

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. To note the details of the report 
2. To consider the impact of the Alternative Provision pilot
3. To consider the continuation of the pilot for the academic year 2019/20

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The local authority pilot to purchasing placements of alternative provision (AP) for 
Salford pupils who are most at risk of exclusion has been in place for two terms.

The pilot was approved by leadership on 06/09/2018, Lead member on 15/11/2018 
and Procurement Board 28/11/2018.

A procurement process was carried out via the local authority’s Dynamic Purchasing 
System (DPS) for AP to help secure the initial forty FTE placements needed for the 
pilot. Seven different packages were offered to providers, each with different 
vocational aims and/or delivery requirements, and providers were invited to bid for 
packages based on their DPS approval status.  

For the first two terms the pilot has supported 66 pupils from KS3 and KS4 to access 
better quality AP that helps them to improve attainment, attendance and behaviour, 
with a view to reintegrating back into mainstream education (or supporting progress 
to an appropriate post-16 destination if the pupil is in Year 11).

As part of the pilot, 45 full-time equivalent (FTE) placements have been charged at a 
standard rate of £10,000 per pupil – 90% payable by the school and 10% by the 
Council – meaning the total amount of funding raised through the pilot is £450. 000.   
In addition, a further 36 FTE placements have been commissioned outside of the 
pilot.
In total we currently have have 276 students accessing Alternative Education 
packages.

Page 57



2

This paper outlines the mid-term review of the pilot with outcomes to support the 
consideration for the pilot to continue for the academic year 2019/20.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
FTE_AP_Pilot - LT 

paper Oct 18.docx

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS:

Background 
An Alternative Provision Working Group was established by the In-Year Fair Access 
Panel (IYFAP) two years and has been meeting on a termly-basis to discuss the 
arrangements and opportunities for strengthening the commissioning of AP for 
vulnerable pupils in Salford. In July 2018, the Working Group agreed to pilot a new 
model for bulk-purchasing FTE AP placements which would be undertaken during 
the 2018/19 academic year. Placements would be charged at a standard rate of £10k 
– schools paying for 90% of the placement with a 10% contribution from the local 
authority – with the principles aims of the pilot to:

 reduce the number of fixed-term and/or permanent exclusions in KS3 and KS4 
and;

 create a more consistent pricing structure for AP placements in Salford

In most cases, it was agreed that pupils referred onto the pilot would be at risk of 
permanent exclusion and would therefore require a full-time AP offer to help them 
address the barriers and challenges experienced in mainstream education. However, 
it was also agreed that some schools could choose to 'split' their placements 
between one or more pupils, especially where a part-time AP placement was 
considered to be a more appropriate offer alongside the pupil’s core curriculum. In 
most cases, these pupils would still be considered to be at risk of exclusion, but the 
part-time AP would be delivered as part of an intervention support programme to 
avoid further escalation. 

Under these terms, the following schools agreed to be part of the pilot:

School No. of placements Cost (inc. 10% LA 
contribution) 

The Albion Academy 8 £80000
All Hallows 3 £30000
Buile Hill 1 £10000
The Clifton Centre 4 £40000
Ellesmere Park 3 £30000
Harrop Fold 5 £50000
Moorside 4 £40000

Page 58



3

The New Broadwalk 2 £20000
Oasis 2 £20000
Salford City Academy 5 £50000
St Ambrose Barlow 2 £20000
St Patricks 2 £20000
Walkden High 1 £10000
Co-op Academy Swinton 3 £30000

Procurement

The Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) has been in operation for 2 years. This has 
now closed. 
We are moving towards implementing a Flexible Purchasing System, from April 2019 
which we feel will meet our needs and be responsive to the purchase of placements 
without being ‘tied’ in to the Providers who applied and were successful for the Pilot.
The system will still be as rigorous, efficient and accountable as the DPS. 

Monitoring and Evaluation

The Pilot is monitored by the Alternative Education Coordinator and the Services to 
Schools Manager.  This will consider whether the pilot has met its planned objectives 
for reducing exclusions and for creating a more consistent and efficient pricing model 
for AP placements. 

Mid term review:
 All secondary schools/academies have bought into the pilot programme 
 276 students are successfully accessing a variety of provisions across the LA.  

This is an increase in 58 full time places from 2017/18
 As a result of the pilot; 
 The range of programmes on offer has increased
 Age appropriate programmes have been made available by our providers to 

meet our need 
 Transport is available to most of our students
 There is a more rapid response rate by providers to arrange student 

inductions etc. 
 Positive working relationships with providers has further developed to support 

our students
 Providers responding to our needs and are willing to evolve and develop their 

offer through positive contract monitoring
 Flexibility working with Providers as placements are pre purchased 
 Positive and flexible working arrangements between providers and support for 

the students they’ share’
 Positive working relationships with parents 
 Increased attendance 

Development/Impact:
 The majority of students are able to demonstrate improved personal, social, 

emotional or training-ready skills

Page 59



4

 Programmes enable students to see success – attendance, engagement, 
aspirations etc.  Far more options for our students to access Vocational 
Programmes and qualifications like BTEC, City & Guilds, NCFE Awards and 
Functional Skills examinations whilst also studying for GCSEs in English & 
Maths- where appropriate for the individual student.

 All Placements are bespoke to meet the needs of the student. 
 Next step pathway- for most of our student we have encouraged and achieved 

‘One step further on’
 Improved links with Colleges as our students attend open days and links 

access/ buddy scheme courses with our Providers.
 Students participating in exciting and creative activity away days and rewards 

trips 
 Accountability of Providers, responding to contract monitoring and our high 

expectations has improved significantly as placements are pre purchased 
 Providers welcome the training and upskilling of staff offered by the Alternative 

Education Coordinator
 Half termly reporting is overall, extremely positive, with student voice 

indicating that students feel they are making progress in their placement and 
have positive relationships with staff 

Challenges – for future consideration if the pilot continues
 Students moving to LAC/EHCP during placement
 Inclusion of LAC/EHCP/PRU pupils in the pilot
 Safeguarding responsibilities of vulnerable students - schools need to take 

lead and accountability
 Schools to accept their responsibility for following up attendance 
 Schools to be open & honest when referring students - full details on referral 

form
 Commissioning, awarding contracts and invoicing 
 SLA – remove from brochure.  Develop SLA like PIP for each referral so can 

charge £100 fee per placement not included in pilot, including out of area 
referrals. 

Outcomes

To reduce the number of fixed-term and/or permanent exclusions in KS3 and KS4 

KS3 AND 4 Exclusions:

2017/18 Aut and Spr term 2018/19 Aut and Spr 
Term

Permanent Exclusions 37 51 36
DB – disruptive behaviour 17 (46%) 20 (39%) 9 (25%)

Fixed Term Exclusions 884 967 759
DB – disruptive behaviour 399 (45%) 454 (47%) 246 (32%)

PEX increase – Harrop Fold x 15 of which 11 for DB reason. 

Page 60



5

FTE increase – Harrop Fold x 208 of which 91 for DB reason

3 schools have been invoiced for £3k per DB permanent exclusion. Total £27k to the 
AP budget.

Taking Harrop Fold out of the data the PEX reasons decreased for persistent 
disruptive behaviour and increased for physical assault against pupil, verbal assault 
against pupil and adult.

The referrals for the majority of full-time alternative placements were made due to 
poor behaviour, lack of engagement, low attendance and internal truanting and 
subsequently at risk of exclusion.  

To create a more consistent pricing structure for AP placements in Salford

In addition to commissioning bulk-purchased places for alternative provision 
placements in the pilot, better rates have been negotiated for the spot-purchased 
places.  In the first two terms this has realised a saving of 142k with an estimated 
saving of £213k by the end of the academic year.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
 

Exclusion Reduction Strategy (Draft) 
Exclusion 

Reduction Strategy 2018 Draft.docx

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

n/a

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Page 61



6

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
HR IMPLICATIONS 

n/a

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:

n/a

CONTACT OFFICER:    

Karen Hamer
Sheila Arnott     

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 62


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2019
	5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Salford Carers Service
	05(a) - Background Doc 1 - PB report 27-01-16
	05(a) - Background Doc 2 - LMB report 20-09-17

	5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Replacement of Life Buoys with Throwlines at Salford Quays
	5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - Approved Flexible Procurement System to Supply Alternative Provision to Salford Pupils
	05(c) - Alternative Provision
	05(c) - Background Doc 1 - ROD - AP - November 2018
	05(c) - Background Doc 2 - LM - AP - March 2019


